CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - NOVEMBER 18, 2025

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on November 18, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. in the
Multipurpose Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite
525, Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Jeremy Thomason, Vice Chairman
Kristen Schascheck, Commissioner
Joe Quirk, Commissioner
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner

MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Keller, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Tina Firgens, Director of Development Services
Andrew Bogda, Asst. Director of Dev Services-Planning
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Christine Ross, Planner I1
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with Staff at 6:30
p.m. for a discussion of regular agenda items and a staff report on pending development, zoning
permits, and planning matters. There was no discussion and no action was taken. The briefing
session was adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Marsh called the regular business meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS

There were no public comments.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of Minutes of the regular business meeting of November 4, 2025.

Motion: Commissioner Quirk made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Commissioner Schascheck seconded the Motion. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

2. Zoning File 25-18 — Planned Development — Apollo Junior High School: A request
to rezone an 18.16-acre lot located at 1600 Apollo Road, on the south side of Apollo



Road, the west side of Amherst Avenue, and the north side of Syracuse Drive, from R-
1800-M Residential District to PD Planned Development for the R-1800-M Residential
District with modified development standards to accommodate the expansion of the
school building and other related site improvements. Owner: Richardson Independent
School District. Staff: Derica Peters.

Chairman Marsh stated the applicant is requesting continuance to the December 16, 2025, meeting,
and that there will be no staff presentation or other action taken by the Commission. Chairman
Marsh opened the public hearing.

Chairman Marsh asked if there was anyone present who wanted to speak in favor or opposition of
the request. Seeing none, Chairman Marsh asked for a Motion.

Motion: Commissioner Roberts made a motion to continue the public hearing until
December 16, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. Commissioner Purdy seconded the motion.
Motion passed 7-0.

3. Zoning File 25-17 — Planned Development — Richardson North Junior High School
(continuation from the November 4, 2025, meeting): A request to rezone a 15.142-acre
lot located at 1820 N. Floyd Road, on the east side of N Floyd Road, and the west side
of Nantucket Drive, from R-1100-M Residential District to PD Planned Development for
the R-1100-M Residential District with modified development standards to
accommodate the expansion of the school building and other related site improvements.
Owner: Richardson Independent School District. Staff: Derica Peters.

Derica Peters, Senior Planner, presented the Commission with the request to rezone property at
1820 N. Floyd Road from R-1100-M Residential District to PD Planned Development for the R-
1100-M Residential District with modified development standards. She stated one comment in
opposition was received and she was available for any questions.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if there were any residents that would be impacted by the new
buildings.

Ms. Peters said no.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any further questions for Staff, and seeing none, the public
hearing was opened, and the applicant was asked to come forward.

James Watson, Senior Executive Director of Operations, 400 S. Greenville Avenue, Richardson,
stated the middle school transformation is part of a RISD Board resolution that was passed in 2021
to convert from a junior high model to a middle school model.

Brett Holzle, Stantec Architects, 2717 Prairie Creek Court, Plano, gave a presentation on the
additions, renovations, and transformation of the project. The guiding principles are created
through feedback from the communities involved and all is aligned with their concept of design as
well as the construction phasing. He discussed in detail the changes to the front drive and building
facade on Floyd that will assist with the queuing and movement of traffic. Mr. Holzle stated the
new larger volume spaces for athletics, fine arts, and the library will be added to the northern end



3

of the site away from residential areas. He discussed changes to the parking area and revised
entrances and exits of the school building and campus, which will include a new access point off
Nantucket Drive to allow for more distribution of traffic and on-site queuing.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if there would be enough parking for staff during construction.
Mr. Holzle replied yes, they will all fit into the north parking lot.

Commissioner Purdy asked what the estimate was on buses being available for the future student
growth.

Mr. Holzle said that the school currently uses five (5) to six (6) buses and the proposed loading
zone for buses is designed for nine (9) buses for additional capacity.

Vice Chairman Thomason said there is no limitations or requirements for parking and asked what
the logic for the applicant is to limit themselves to 170 parking spaces.

Mr. Holzle stated he did not have a definite answer and that 170 spaces was something they felt
comfortable they could achieve given the site plan constraints.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked what the plan was for the existing gym.

Mr. Holzle answered the old gym will be demolished as part of plans to reorganize the space and
add the new athletic, dining, and fine arts facilities.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked about how they would handle school being in session in the
middle of a construction project.

Mr. Holzle advised as an architect they have handled situations like this before and there is
sensitivity on how to move students throughout the campus. They plan to move students only once
and will have a construction risk manager on board that can help with document detail to make
sure the phasing works for them and for the campus; the principal is also heavily involved. In
addition, this campus is currently under capacity compared to what it was originally designed for,
so there is some swing space to be able to better move students during construction.

Chairman Marsh asked if they had studied what the impact would be for those traveling westbound
on Campbell Road making a left turn onto Nantucket in association with opening up the new access
point (Drive “D”) from Nantucket.

Mr. Holzle replied he did not know how far they investigated the outlay for the impact of that
signal, but if more information is needed, he can speak with the engineering staff at the city.

Tina Firgens, Director of Development Services, added that in discussions with the City’s
Transportation & Mobility staff about possible implications to various intersections and the traffic
management associated with this site, they were not aware of any concerns at this time.

Chairman Marsh indicated the City Council might be interested in knowing about further street
impact of cars causing back-ups during drop-off and pick-up times.



Ms. Firgens advised the packet shows ten (10) intersections that were studied in the traffic impact
analysis with no concerns being brought to staff’s attention. She stated they could investigate other
intersections should Council have any questions or concerns. Staff believes that Nantucket will be
able to handle the demand that will be placed on it with the proposed new drive “D” off the street.
In addition, Ms. Firgens indicated they worked with the RISD team to make sure a traffic
management plan was in place to address the concerns that have occurred over the past years.

Chairman Marsh pointed out that Floyd and surrounding streets have multiple driveways that will
create many turning movements for the front of the school with cars and buses entering and exiting
and making turns in multiple directions. He feels there should be a more in-depth study of traffic
movement in the area.

Commissioner Quirk mentioned that the addition of Drive “D” can only help with the traffic
situation in the area. He asked if the proposed PD standards are what is being considered.

Ms. Firgens advised the standards included in the packet on the planned development district list
are the items needing to be addressed for the existing constraints of an otherwise residential zoning
district.

Commissioner Quirk said he is trying to focus on what they are voting on.

Ms. Firgens replied those standards provided for in the attachment are what is being proposed to
help accommodate the facility.

Commissioner Quirk stated it was planned to have police or security staff monitoring the entrances
and exits and he was concerned about the follow-through.

Commissioner Schascheck commented that although there will still be an impact to the
community, she appreciates the changes and additions that will make a meaningful difference.

Commissioner Quirk asked what the student population was when the school held 7%, 8, and 9"
grade.

Mr. Holzle said 800-900 students.

Chairman Marsh asked how much higher than eight (8) feet did they want the fence to be and
would it be chain link.

Mr. Holzle said the fence was specifically for the athletic field and for safety purposes they would
like a 10—12-foot fence; it could be chain-link or netting, but other options were available.

With no further questions, Chairman Marsh asked for any public comments in favor or opposition.

With no further speakers, Commissioner Roberts made a motion to close the public hearing,
Commissioner Quirk seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.



5

Chairman Marsh stated the presentation was great, however, he would have liked to see more detail
on the traffic analysis.

Commissioner Roberts commented he is in support of the project.

Motion: Commissioner Roberts made a motion to recommend approval of the request
as presented. Commissioner Poynter seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.

4. Zoning File 25-19 — Planned Development - Twilight Plaza: A request to rezone
approximately 2.39 acres located at 508 Twilight Trail, on the north side of Twilight
Trail, west of Custer Road, from O-M Office to PD Planned Development for O-M
Office to accommodate additional uses. Owner: Pardue Twilight Plaza Ltd. Staff:
Derica Peters.

Derica Peters presented the request to rezone property located at 508 Twilight Trail from O-M
Office to PD Planned Development for O-M Office to the commission and advised two comments
in opposition of the request were received and she remained available for questions.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if a cafeteria falls under an incidental restaurant use in the O-M
Office District.

Ms. Peters said yes.

Chairman Marsh asked if staff could define what a community garden is and where it would be on
the site.

Andrew Bogda, Assistant Director of Development Services — Planning, stated they did not have
a definition of a community garden but there are definitions of all the other uses and the applicant
can speak to the location of the garden.

Ms. Peters advised that a massage use is allowed by right and therefore should be removed from
the use regulations.

Vice Chairman Thomason stated it is required that waste containers have a masonry screening
wall, however currently they have a wooden screening wall and asked if staff could expand on that
issue.

Ms. Firgens advised the City is interested in the masonry screening walls around dumpster
enclosures because of their durability, however a wooden fence could be acceptable if it is
maintained properly. She said she could verify that it is cleaning up an issue where the City allowed
for the wooden fencing instead of the masonry.

Chairman Marsh asked if the dumpsters were moving because the packet stated there would be
new opaque dumpster enclosures.

Ms. Peters stated they would not be moving the dumpsters.



6

Mr. Bogda explained they will be retaining the existing wooden enclosures and adding opaque
gates, which would be an improvement to the existing dumpster enclosures.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were concerns about the parking inside the courtyard versus the
parking on the exterior perimeter.

Mr. Bogda stated that during discussion with the applicant, they felt they would be able to manage
the mix of tenants and the parking situation, along with hours the gates would be open and who
could access the different parking areas. Based on the mixture of uses they are planning, staff felt
confident that the parking currently provided can accommodate all uses.

Ms. Firgens stated the parking they are proposing in this Planned Development district has been
implemented in other areas of the city. It is up to the applicant to manage their parking based upon
the uses that occupy the spaces.

Commissioner Roberts stated that the proposal provides for a higher and better use of the space in
order to attract tenants. He also acknowledged the comment cards related to traffic and asked if
there was any communication regarding hours of operation for the restaurant or community theater
uses.

Ms. Peters stated there was not.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any further questions for staff, and seeing none, the public
hearing was opened, and the applicant was asked to come forward.

Taylor Pardue, 907 Beachwood Drive, Richardson, represents the owners of the Twilight Plaza
property, presented his request to rezone from O-M Office to PD Planned Development for O-M
Office. He stated their request for a PD will only enhance their property in keeping with the
surrounding businesses and the future enhancement area plan, providing uses that the community
can partake in beyond just the standard office space.

Commissioner Schascheck asked what the occupied and available square-foot percentages were
of the property.

Mr. Pardue replied the property is 46% occupied and they have approximately 15,000 square-feet
available.

Chairman Marsh asked what the reasoning was for the community garden.

Mr. Pardue answered they currently maintain a beehive in their courtyard and thought a vegetable
garden would be nice to also have there in the future.

Commissioner Roberts asked if it was common for a PD to include a list of speculative uses.

Ms. Bogda replied yes, and that any of the uses listed in the PD could be allowed by right even if
there are no immediate plans for one of the particular uses.



7

Commissioner Roberts asked for confirmation that the listed uses would be allowed by right if the
PD is approved and that the uses are not allowed by right if the PD is not approved.

Mr. Bogda said that was correct.

Ms. Firgens explained that when working with applicants in devising a PD, staff evaluates the
proposed uses and whether they are consistent with the Envision Richardson Comprehensive Plan
and compatible with existing businesses and surrounding uses.

Commissioner Roberts stated the proposal says a restaurant without drive through service is
allowed, but what if they wanted to add one in the future.

Mr. Bogda advised if the restaurant wanted to have a drive through in the future, the zoning would
need to be amended to allow it.

With no further questions for the applicant, Chairman Marsh asked if there was anyone present
who wanted to speak in favor or opposition of the request.

Residents speaking in opposition of the request:

Ms. Debbie Fish, 602 Park Bend Drive, Richardson
Mr. Bart Fish, 602 Park Bend Drive, Richardson

The couple explained they purchased the property at 516 Twilight Trail because it was in a quiet
residential neighborhood, and they feel this redevelopment plan will have a negative impact on the
community. Their own clients do not want to be next to retail due to the traffic and noise, or
restaurants because of the smells and trash they create. The applicant did not reach out to them
about the plans for their property. They feel the zoning request is too broad and uses need to be
limited. Mr. Fish talked to several neighbors on Twilight, and they are not in favor of the request
because of traffic, noise, and hours of operation.

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant would like to come back and respond to the public
comments.

Mr. Pardue stated it was an oversight on their part that they did not contact Mr. and Mrs. Fish. He
said they had several meetings with Jeff Davis and Dan Washbum of the Heights Park
Neighborhood Association and the correspondence they received was in favor of the request.

Chairman Marsh asked staff to elaborate on the City’s opinion that this request would not expect
to have a significant traffic impact on the surrounding area.

Mr. Bogda said as part of any zoning application, they require the applicant to submit a trip
generation memo showing the potential increase or decrease in traffic. In doing so, they found,
given the uses being proposed, that it would not generate additional traffic beyond what the current
zoning would allow, particularly since they’re not increasing the area of parking.

Chairman Marsh asked if the property is zoned for office to the west.



8

Ms. Peters advised that the property to the west is currently zoned O-M Office and further beyond
that, the residential zoning district starts.

Chairman Marsh asked if staff evaluates dumpster locations relative to existing commercial or
office uses.

Ms. Firgens replied when evaluating land uses like a restaurant, odor is not necessarily something
that is considered; other performance standards come into play that help with addressing odors or
noise. There is flexibility on a commercial property as to where the dumpster can be located, unless
there were placement restrictions cited in accordance with our current zoning requirements.

Mr. Bogda included that the restaurant use is allowed by right in the C-M District to the north as
well as the LR-M(1) Local Retail District to the east. Staff found that the proposed uses for the
subject property act as a good buffer or transition between the more-intensive commercial districts
to the north and east and the less-intensive O-M district to the west.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if the applicant had a meeting with the homeowners’ association
membership.

Mr. Pardue replied they only contacted the president, and he sent out emails to members expressing
his excitement about the redevelopment.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if they received any comments in favor or against the request
from the members of the homeowners’ association.

Mr. Pardue said the president received positive feedback, but he did not send it to him, however,
he did receive a forwarded social media post with some favorable comments.

Vice Chairman Thomason commented that the homeowners’ associations in the neighborhoods of
Richardson carry a lot of respect, and he appreciated the applicant doing their due diligence. He
stated the property was unique and the style presented some challenges with the leasing, but he
sees no problem with the traffic and is in favor of the request.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if there was the possibility of the applicant combining a large
area of space into a single use to accommodate a community theatre or other larger tenant where
parking could be an issue.

Mr. Pardue stated they spoke with a community theatre company, but they only wanted 7,000
square feet and it would have offices, classrooms and a theatre combined. In evaluating their
parking needs and hours of operation, he did not find the use to have a negative impact on the other
tenants and parking needs within the center.

Chairman Marsh asked if they would ever consider opening the exterior walls for access to the
public, like storefronts on the outside of the building.

Mr. Pardue indicated they have discussed potentially doing that for specific tenants if requested.



9

Ms. Peters said the applicant could do that if the code allows for it and he would have to go through
the building permitting process.

Mr. Bogda added that this PD would be tied to the concept plan and if parking or the building
footprint does not change, they would not need to amend the concept plan.

Mr. Pardue advised they are not proposing any changes to the size, height, or square footage of the
building.

Chairman Marsh asked if the new landscaping going around the perimeter is a hedge row for
headlights on cars.

Ms. Peters cited that the applicant is bringing the site closer to conformance by adding the hedge
and that is not in this PD because it is already in the code.

Chairman Marsh asked if they would rebrand.
Mr. Pardue advised that they rebranded in 2020 with Twilight Plaza as the new logo.

Chairman Marsh asked if they were to ever put signage on the building, would it need to be
addressed as part of the PD.

Ms. Firgens answered no and said what is not addressed in the PD defaults to the base zoning
district that is provided for within it. They would have to follow the City’s current signage
ordinance requirements.

With no further questions, Commissioner Roberts made a motion to close the public hearing.
Commissioner Purdy seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.

There was discussion amongst the Commission regarding the attractiveness of the property and
that it is underutilized, but now is the time to make it better. They felt the redevelopment was in
the spirit of the Comprehensive Plan with the revitalization aspect. However, they understood the
concerns from the neighbors and suggest they contact members of the homeowners’ association
since they were in support of the project.

Motion: Commissioner Roberts made a motion to recommend approval of the request
as presented. Vice Chairman Thomason seconded the motion. Motion passed
6-1 (Commissioner Purdy opposed).

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular business
meeting at 8:46 p.m.

4

Bryan Marsh, Chairman




